
AGENDA SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
DATE & TIME Wednesday, May 18, 2022 - 7:01 PM

Closed Session - 7:02 p.m.
LOCATION
Pursuant to Assembly Bill No.361 (Chapter 165,Statutes of 2021) approved by the Governor 
on September 16,2021) codified at Government Code Section 54953 a local legislative body 
is authorized to hold public meetings remotely via teleconferencing without complying with 
the teleconferencing requirements imposed by the Ralph M. Brown Act  when, among other 
requirements, a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a proclaimed state 
emergency, and makes the public meeting accessible  “via a call-in option or an internet-
based service option” to all members of the public seeking to access and attend the meeting, 
offer public comment, and address the legislative body. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
Public access to this meeting is available as follows:
Join Zoom Meeting:
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89822835206?pwd=K1d1Qng1TlBsY01uWlRHaEx2U3JSdz09

Meeting ID:898 2283 5206
Passcode:023235

Persons wishing to address the Board of Directors are asked to submit comments for the 
public speaking portion of the Agenda as follows:

Send an email with your comment(s) to jpolar@alamedahsg.org and 
vcooper@alamedahsg.org prior to or during the Board of Directors meeting
Call and leave a message at (510) 871-7435.

When addressing the Board, on agenda items or business introduced by Directors, members 
of the public may speak for a maximum of three minutes per agenda item when the subject 
is before the Board.

Persons in need of special assistance to participate in the meetings of the Alameda 
Affordable Housing Corporation Board of Directors, please contact (510) 747-4325 (voice), 
TTY/TRS: 711, or jpolar@alamedahsg.org. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will 
enable the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation Board of Directors to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
May 18, 2022

1. ROLL CALL - Board of Directors

2. DIRECTOR RECUSALS

3. Public Comment (Non-Agenda)

4. Closed Session - 7:02 p.m. - Adjournment to Closed Session to Consider:

4.A. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a)
Conference with Legal counsel re existing litigation:  Housing Authority of the City of 
Alameda v. Johnson, Alameda County Superior Court No. RG18-933615

4.B. Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(a)
Conference with Legal counsel re existing litigation:  Housing Authority of the City of 
Alameda v. Camanag, Alameda County Superior Court No. RG21109420

5. CONSENT CALENDER
Consent Calendar items are considered routine and will be approved or accepted by one
motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the Board
of Directors or a member of the public.

5.A. Approve Minutes of the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation Meetings held on
March 16, 2022, March 30, 2022, and April 27, 2022.

5.B. Accept Report on the Federal and State Tax Returns for the Fiscal Year Ending June
30, 2021.

5.C. Approve to Write-off of Uncollectible Accounts Receivable from Former Tenants.

6. AGENDA

6.A. Hold a Public Hearing on the Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund Guidelines.

6.B. Accept Report for Balcony Replacements at Independence Plaza and Approve
Executive Director to Procure, Negotiate, and Sign a Contract for Repairs and Related 
Costs Not to Exceed $1,850,000; Approve Internal AHA Loan to AAHC for 
Independence Plaza not to exceed $800,000 to Bridge Other Sources.

6.C. Adopt Authorizing Resolution for the Real Property Transfer of Properties to a Limited
Liability Company, Amend the Property and Asset Management Agreement, and 
Authorize the Executive Director, or Designee, to Negotiate and Execute Related 
Documents.

6.D. Adopt Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Alameda Affordable Housing
Corporation Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by the Governor of 
the State of California on March 4, 2021, and Making Findings Authorizing Continued 
Remote Teleconference Meetings of the Board of Directors Pursuant to Brown Act 
Provisions, as amended by Assembly Bill No. 361.

7. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS, Non-Agenda (Public Comment)

8. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S COMMUNICATIONS

9. DIRECTORS COMMUNICATIONS, (Communications from the Directors)

10. ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING

* * * Note * * *

Page 4

Page 11
Page 64

Page 67

Page 88

Page 93

Page 98



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 3
May 18, 2022
Documents related to this agenda are available for public inspection and copying at the 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation office, 701 Atlantic Avenue, during normal business 
hours.

KNOW YOUR RIGHTS UNDER THE Ralph M. Brown Act: Government’s duty is to serve the 
public, reaching its decisions in full view of the public.  The Board of Directors exists to 
conduct the business of its constituents. Deliberations are conducted before the people and 
are open for the people’s review.

In order to assist the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation’s efforts to accommodate 
persons with severe allergies, environmental illnesses, multiple chemical sensitivity or related 
disabilities, attendees at public meetings are reminded that other attendees may be sensitive 
to various chemical based products. Please help the Alameda Affordable Housing 
Corporation accommodate these individuals.



 
DRAFT MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 16, 2022 

 

 
 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 
 

  

 

  

 



 

  

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

Items accepted or adopted are indicated by an asterisk.
 

 

  
 

 
 



 

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 



 
DRAFT MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
WEDNESDAY, MARCH 30, 2022 

 
 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  
 

 

 



 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 



 
DRAFT MINUTES 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 27, 2022 

 
 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  
 

 

 



 

  

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 



To: Board of Directors

From: 
 

Janet Lee, Controller 

Prepared By: Janet Lee, Controller

 
Date: 
 

May 18, 2022 

Re: Accept Report on the Federal and State Tax Returns for the Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2021.
5.B.

BACKGROUND
All tax exempt corporations must file an annual information tax return to the Internal Revenue 
Service (IRS), known as Form 990, and to the State of California, known as Form 199. The 
tax return has been reviewed by the Director of Finance, Controller, and Executive Director 
and has been submitted prior to the filing due date of May 16, 2022. 

DISCUSSION
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation's (AAHC) auditor and tax firm Novogradac & 
Company LLP prepared the IRS Form 990 and state Form 199 based on the audited financial 
statements. The tax return includes operating activities from July 1, 2020 – June 30, 2021 for 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation. 

FISCAL IMPACT
None. 

CEQA
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION
Accept Report on the Federal and State Tax Returns for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 
2021. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation - Revised 2021 Draft Tax Return



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
May 18, 2022

Respectfully submitted,
Janet Lee
Janet Lee, Controller





www.irs.gov/e-file-providers/e-file-for-charities-and-non-profits.

Only submit original (no copies needed).

 

   

 
 

   
 

  



 
 
 
 

 
     

   
    §    

       

 

 

   



 

   

   



If "Yes," complete Schedule A
Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II

If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part III

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part I

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part II
If "Yes," complete

Schedule D, Part III

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V

If "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Part VI

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X
If "Yes," complete

Schedule D, Parts XI and XII

If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional
If "Yes," complete Schedule E

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I

If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II
If "Yes,"

complete Schedule G, Part III
If "Yes," complete Schedule H

If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and II

If "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optionalIf "Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IXIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX

If "Yes," complete Schedule D,

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIIIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII

If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIIIIf "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII



(continued)

If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and III

If "Yes," complete
Schedule J

If "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I

If "Yes," complete
Schedule L, Part I

 If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part III

If
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV
If

"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV
If "Yes," complete Schedule M

If "Yes," complete Schedule M
If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I

If "Yes," complete
Schedule N, Part II

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, and 

Part V, line 1

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI

 

If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part IIf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I

If "Yes," complete Schedule MIf "Yes," complete Schedule M

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IVIf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV

 If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II

If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IIIIf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part III



(continued)

e-file

If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O

If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O

J



For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response
to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

If "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O
(This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

If "No," go to line 13

If "Yes," describe
in Schedule O how this was done

 (explain on Schedule O)

 

J

       

If "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule OIf "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O
(This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)(This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

If "No," go to line 13If "No," go to line 13

in Schedule O how this was donein Schedule O how this was done



 

 



(continued)

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such personIf "Yes," complete Schedule J for such personIf "Yes," complete Schedule J for such person

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individualIf "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual

If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individualIf "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual



Business Code

Business Code

 



Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b,
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII.

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

     

     

     



(i) (iii) (v) (vi)(ii) Name of supported

organization

Type of organization 
(described on lines 1-10 
above (see instructions))

Amount of monetary

support (see instructions)

Amount of other

support (see instructions)

EIN

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 



If "No," describe in how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

If "Yes," explain in  how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

If "Yes," answer
lines 3b and 3c below.

If "Yes," describe in when and how the
organization made the determination.

If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.
If

"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

If "Yes," describe in  how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

 If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

If "Yes,"
answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

If "Yes," provide detail in

If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ).

If "Yes," provide detail in 

 If "Yes," provide detail in 

If "Yes," provide detail in 

 If "Yes," answer line 10b below.
(Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to

determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

answer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in including (i) the names and EINanswer lines 5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

If "Yes," describe in  how the organization had such control and discretionIf "Yes," describe in  how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

 If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization used If "Yes," explain in  what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)



If "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide
detail in 

If "No," describe in  how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

If "Yes," explain in
 how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,

supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

If "No," describe in how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

 If "No," explain in  how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

If "Yes," describe in  the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard.

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year
Complete below.

Complete below.
Describe in  how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

If "Yes," then in 
 how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,

how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

 If "Yes," explain in
 the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in

these activities but for the organization's involvement.

If "Yes" or "No" provide details in

If "Yes," describe in the role played by the organization in this regard.

 

(continued)

 
 
 

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the yearCheck the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year

If "Yes," describe in  the role the organization'sIf "Yes," describe in  the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard.supported organizations played in this regard.

the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

If "No," describe in how controlIf "No," describe in how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managedor management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed

 how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,



explain in 

explain in detail in

 

 



provide details in
describe in

provide details in

explain in

explain in

explain in

(continued) 





For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF. Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2020)

OMB No. 1545-0047

exclusively
 exclusively

nonexclusively

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2020)

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 



Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2020)



Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year
from any one contributor. (a) (e) and

$1,000 or less

Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2020)

 Complete columns  through  the following line entry. For organizations



SCHEDULE D

   

   

   
   
 

   

   

  
  



(continued)

(Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.)

   
   
 

   

   

   
 



(Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.)

(Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.)

 



(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.)

(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.)(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.)(This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.)



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
  











R
e

la
te

d
 O

rg
a

n
iz

a
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 U
n

re
la

te
d

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

s

2
0
2
0







Y
e

s
N

o
Y

e
s

N
o

Y
e

s
N







   
       
   

   
         

         
     

     
   
       

   

j

 

   













  

 

   

   

 





 
 





To: Board of Directors

From: 
 

Stephanie Shipe, Director of Portfolio Management 

Prepared By: Stephanie Shipe, Director of Portfolio Management

 
Date: 
 

May 18, 2022 

Re: Approve to Write-off of Uncollectible Accounts Receivable from Former 
Tenants.
5.C.

BACKGROUND
Periodically, the Housing Authority writes-off uncollectible rent and miscellaneous charges 
from its books.  The term write-off indicates a procedure where past due amounts from 
tenants, who are no longer residents in a Housing Authority community. These amounts are 
removed from its books after the usual means of collection have been exhausted.  For budget 
purposes, this write-off appears as an expense.  This procedure does not preclude the 
Housing Authority from continuing to pursue collection through a collection agency.  Future 
collection of amounts previously written-off will reduce future expenses. 

DISCUSSION
This request is to write-off accounts receivable for tenants who have vacated and have 
outstanding balances due to the Authority. One more notice will be sent to the tenants before 
the outstanding balance is written off. The total is $19,634.79 this amount is a combination of 
rents due, damages and miscellaneous maintenance charges. Uncollected Tenant Accounts 
Receivable is a budgeted expense item. 

FISCAL IMPACT
This tenant account write-off will result in an expense to the Housing Authority of $19,634.79 
in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022 and will presented in the audited financial statement. 

CEQA
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
May 18, 2022
Staff recommends approval to write-off the attached tenant accounts receivable totaling 
$19,634.79 after one final notice is sent to the tenant. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. JSCO Annual Write-Offs 2021-2022

Respectfully submitted,

Stephanie Shipe, Director of Portfolio Management



Property
Rent/Damage

s/Maint 
Charges

China Clipper $6,530.79
Esperanza $13,104.00

Grand Total 19,634.79$     

HOUSING AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ALAMEDA
ANNUAL WRITE OFFS - PAST TENANTS

For Fiscal Year End 6/30/22



To: Board of Directors

From: 
 

Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development 

Prepared By: Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development

 
Date: 
 

May 18, 2022 

Re: Hold a Public Hearing on the Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 
Guidelines.
6.A.

BACKGROUND
In July 2021, the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation created the Alameda Affordable 
Housing Trust Fund (AAHTF) to provide a permanent local funding source for affordable 
housing in the City of Alameda.  The AAHTF was capitalized with a $7.5 million grant from 
the Housing Authority of the City of Alameda, and subsequently received $2.5 million in 
matching funds from the Local Housing Trust Fund (LHTF) Program, funded by the Veterans 
and Affordable Housing Bond Act of 2018 (Proposition 1) and administered by the California 
Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD).  
 
The State of California Local Housing Trust Fund program requires that there is an annual 
public hearing to hear comments on the AAHTF guidelines, for the purpose of discussing the 
criteria that will be used to select projects to be funded. Public examination of the guidelines 
of the Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund is vitally important to AAHC’s focus on 
transparency and commitment to building affordable homes within the City of Alameda. 

DISCUSSION
To guide the discussion, the current guideline priorities are listed:
 
2021 Guideline Priorities:

1. New construction
2. Land owned by AHA
3. Will offer a ROFR to AAHC
4. 55 years affordability
5. Where a majority of units are PSH



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
May 18, 2022

6. Emphasis on the highest percentage of very low- and low-income persons
1. Including lowest rents
2. A greater percentage of affordable units
3. Longer periods of affordability
4. Utilizing funds as a match for other sources

7. At least one other committed funding source, or a subsidized ground lease
8. Site Plan approval
9. Developers with a minimum of two affordable 100% affordable new construction 

developments in the City of Alameda
10. Sponsors must be a legal nonprofit, public agency or other governmental agency
11. Permanent financing secured by a deed of trust
12. 10% equity in the property after completion of a project.

 
Staff suggests the following updates to the guidelines:

1. Clarify that any funds specifically awarded to apply for a match from the State of 
California LHTF program must meet the current guidelines of that program as well.

2. Clarify that the General Partner of a development must actively facilitate the transfer of 
the ROFR to AAHC, or its affiliate, in the Limited Partnership Agreement

3. Increase the loan fee to up to 5% of the award amount to the terms.  This fee, if 
required as part of the grant, may be fulfilled by a loan fee of up to 5% to the initial 
grantee. The loan fee will be due no earlier than 30 days after placed in service, 
preferably at permanent conversion.

4. Specifically, allow the AAHTF to accept land, with the specific requirement that the 
property be subject to a subsidized ground lease, for projects subject to a LHTF match 
application. Clarify that land owned by AAHTF or by AAHC is also included in the 
above priority. 

5. Add: “Or Developments in Moderate to Highest Opportunity Areas of the City of 
Alameda, per the California Tax Credit Allocation Committee methodology” to the 
section regarding “where a majority of units are PSH” 

6. Increase the predevelopment loan fraction to up to 100% of each loan rather than 
20%.

7. Add a one-page summary term sheet to the guidelines, per 2021 Board request.
8. Increase the construction cost contingency to no more than 10% of the construction 

budget, rather than 8%.
9. Clarify that donors to the AAHTF may have additional terms that a project will have to 

meet to qualify for an award.

Written Comments:  Previously received public written comments are attached.

Next Steps:
 
Per the public comment and Board direction, staff will prepare an updated set of guidelines 
for Board approval in summer of 2022.   

FISCAL IMPACT
None.



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 3
May 18, 2022

CEQA
None. 

RECOMMENDATION
Hold a Public Hearing on the Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund Guidelines. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund Guidelines_July 2021
2. Att 1 AAHTF Public Comments

Respectfully submitted,

Sylvia Martinez, Director of Housing Development



ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
TRUST FUND 

Administrative Guidelines

Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation 



 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS
 
CHAPTER 

 

 
PAGE

 
CHAPTER 1 - STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 1

 

 
 
CHAPTER 2 - DEFINITIONS 1

 

 
 
CHAPTER 3 - AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND ESTABLISHED 2

 

 
 
CHAPTER 4 - MANAGEMENT 2

 

 
 
CHAPTER 5 DISTRIBUTION & USE OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING TRUST FUND ASSETS 3

 

 
 
ATTACHMENT I: AHTF LOAN AND UNDERWRITING GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES



3 
Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

 Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund  

Chapter 1: Statement of Purpose

Chapter 2: Definitions



4 
Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

Chapter 3: Housing Trust Fund Established.

Chapter 4: Management



5 
Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 



 

6 
Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 

Chapter 5: Distribution and Use of Housing Trust Fund Assets



 

7 
Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 



 

8 
Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund 



 9 

 

 

ATTACHMENT
I

Alameda Affordable Housing Trust Fund Loan and 
Underwriting Guidelines and Procedures

I. AHTF LOAN FEES

II. AHTF LOAN AND UNDERWRITING GUIDELINES:   

Sources and Uses Statement and Pro Forma 

Sources and Uses Statement 

Sources 

Required Debt Coverage ratio/Positive Cash Flow requirement 



 10 

 

 

Senior Lender/Junior Lender loan types 

pari passu

.  

Uses 

DOCUMENTATION: 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 



 11 

 

 

Operating Pro Forma 

DOCUMENTATION: 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 



 12 

 

 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 



 13 

 

 

Market Assessment

DOCUMENTATION

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 

Developer Capacity Assessment: 

Experience

DOCUMENTATION



 14 

 

 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN:

Developer Financial Capacity 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 

Developer Profit and Return 

ACTION TO BE TAKEN: 

Developer Fee 



 15 

 

 

Cash-Flow 

Identity of Interest Roles









To: Board of Directors

From: 
 

Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager 

Prepared By: Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager

 
Date: 
 

May 18, 2022 

Re: Accept Report for Balcony Replacements at Independence Plaza and 
Approve Executive Director to Procure, Negotiate, and Sign a Contract 
for Repairs and Related Costs Not to Exceed $1,850,000; Approve 
Internal AHA Loan to AAHC for Independence Plaza not to exceed 
$800,000 to Bridge Other Sources.
6.B.

BACKGROUND
On September 17, 2018, the California Legislature passed Senate Bill 721, Chapter 455. This 
bill was passed in response to the June 16, 2015, tragedy in Berkeley, California where a 
balcony collapsed and 6 people died while 7 others suffered serious injuries.
 
This law, SB 721,  requires an inspection of exterior elevated elements, including decks and 
balconies, for buildings with 3 or more multifamily dwelling units by a licensed architect, 
licensed civil or structural engineer, a building contractor holding specified licenses, or an 
individual certified as a building inspector or building official, as specified. The bill requires the 
inspections, including any necessary testing, to be completed by January 1, 2025, with 
certain exceptions, and would require subsequent inspections every 6 years, except as 
specified.  

DISCUSSION
There was an elevated balcony inspection completed in late 2019 at the Independence Plaza 
property by Applied Materials & Engineering, Inc.  In general, the report noted that 17 
balconies were severely decayed, making the balconies and patios below unsafe to use. 
Additionally, there were other balconies on the property in various stages of disrepair.
 
Due to the restrictions put in place in response to the COVID-19 outbreak, the repairs 
recommended in that report were not executed immediately, although any balconies 
considered hazardous were made off limits, and tenants were issued a renter’s credit for the 



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
May 18, 2022
inability to use the balconies.
 
Since that time, two years, staff have noted that the repair scope has grown, and these 
repairs are now of the highest priority. The existing elevated balconies and guardrails are in 
various stages of disrepair and will require extensive repairs, and/or full replacement in the 
very near future, some immediately. 

In January 2022, staff provided an update to the Board seeking guidance on beginning this 
work. The staff also met with the residents at Independence Plaza to discuss the upcoming 
work, answer questions and address residents concerns.
 
There are 61 ground floor patios and 125 elevated balconies on this property. The elevated 
balconies with guardrails are on a variety of 2nd , 3rd, and 4th floor configurations consisting 
of Type 5 (wood) construction, supported by a concrete slab on grade.
 
 A staff assessment of the existing conditions of the residential balconies at the 
Independence Plaza community was completed in January and found 53 Balconies and an 
additional 25 guardrails  in need of immediate replacement.
 
Staff prepared and issued an RFP (Request for Proposals) soliciting bids for the work 
identified above and received 2 bids from qualified contractors. The bid specifically requires 
pre-negotiated unit costs for additional work. As of this date, it is not expected that any of the 
residents will need to relocate overnight, as all work is exterior work and will be done during 
the day.

The staff expects to negotiate the contract, secure funding and have the contractor mobilize 
and begin the remediation work by the end of July.

Prior to contractor mobilization, the staff and contractor will host another meeting with the 
residents to update them on the schedule as well as address what to expect during the 
process. The duration of time for the work on site is expected to be six months. A schedule 
will be published, posted in a public place, and (4) notices (2 week, 1 week, 48 hrs.) will be 
posted on residents and adjacent neighbors' doors prior to repairs being made, as well as a 
notice of completion once the work is done.
 
The goal of this renovation is to address current and urgent needs.  It is anticipated that this 
will include full or partial replacement of approximately 40% of the current balconies. At that 
point, additional work can be performed on an annual or biannual basis to keep the structures 
in good condition. 

FISCAL IMPACT
Independence Plaza has multiple sources of reserves and funds to cover the costs of these 
repairs, as shown on the attachment. However, some of these funds are not immediately 
available, as the CIC funds can only be requested in tranches every six months. We expect 
the CIC funds to become available between 7/1/22 and 12/31/23 in up to three tranches. The 
staff requests the use of an internal bridge loan from the Housing Authority, using the funds 
set aside in the Preservation section of the Reserve Policy, to cover costs until repaid. Staff 
will update the Board on the progress of bridge fund utilization and repayment.



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 3
May 18, 2022
The cost of the repairs, plus a 10% contingency for unanticipated costs or additional scope, is 
anticipated to be $1,850,000. As of November 2021, Independence Plaza has access to 
$186,000 in replacement reserves held by the Housing Authority, as well as $496,000 held by 
the lender.  Use of lender reserves will require written approval by the lender and are only 
available on a reimbursement basis. Permission from the lender will be sought if the Board of 
Directors approves this item.
 
In addition,  the City of Alameda and State Department of Finance have approved $1,387,000 
in redevelopment proceeds. These funds can be drawn down in late 2022 and early 2023.
 
Because it is anticipated that the work will be initiated before the City has completed its 
approval process, staff proposes that the following permanent sources be identified for this 
work:
 
With the Board of Director’s approval, staff will use current cash flow and the AHA reserves 
for the work and seek reimbursement from the lender reserves as available.    

CEQA
Not Applicable 

RECOMMENDATION
Accept Report for Balcony Replacements at Independence Plaza and Approve Executive 
Director to Procure, Negotiate, and Sign a Contract for Repairs and Related Costs Not to 
Exceed $1,850,000; Approve Internal AHA Loan to AAHC for Independence Plaza not to 
exceed $800,000 to Bridge Other Sources 

ATTACHMENTS
1. Att 1 IP Balconies - Sources and Uses

Respectfully submitted,

Joseph Nagel, Construction Project Manager







To: Board of Directors

From: 
 

Cheley Quiambao, Asset Manager 

Prepared By: Cheley Quiambao, Asset Manager

 
Date: 
 

May 18, 2022 

Re: Adopt Authorizing Resolution for the Real Property Transfer of 
Properties to a Limited Liability Company, Amend the Property and 
Asset Management Agreement, and Authorize the Executive Director, or 
Designee, to Negotiate and Execute Related Documents.
6.C.

BACKGROUND
The Housing Authority of the City of Alameda (AHA) is the contract administrator for the 
Section 8 program in the City of Alameda, which includes Housing Assistance Payment 
(HAP) contracts for both the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) and Project Based Voucher 
(PBV) programs. Additionally, AHA owns real property which is assisted by the HCV and PBV 
programs.

In 2017, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) published PIH 
Notice 2017-21 that clarifies HAP contract requirements for Public Housing Authority-owned 
units. Attachment A, Section 5, of the Notice states: “Because the HAP contract administrator 
and the owner cannot be the same legal entity (i.e., the PHA acting as contract administrator 
cannot execute a contract with itself as the owner of the PBV or HCV units), the PHA must 
establish a separate legal entity to serve as the owner.”

On October 18, 2017, the Board of Commissioners authorized the Executive Director to 
create a nonprofit entity or a limited liability corporation that will serve as owner of certain 
AHA properties in order to comply with HUD’s contracting requirements. Alameda Affordable 
Housing Corporation (AAHC) was created as a nonprofit arm of AHA. The governing Board of 
AAHC is the same Board as AHA’s, as defined in the bylaws. On November 20, 2019, the 
Board authorized staff to prepare documents to transfer each of AHA- owned properties to 
AAHC.

Since 2018, over 90% of the properties have been successfully transferred from AHA to 
AAHC, consistent with the HUD directive. Properties that have transferred are a total of 492 



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
May 18, 2022
units:  Anne B Diament Plaza (65 units), China Clipper Plaza (26 units), Eagle Village (36 
units), Esperanza (120 units), Independence Plaza (186 units), Lincoln Willow (5 units), 
Parrot Village (50 units), and Stanford House (4 units). 

DISCUSSION
AHA has decided to create Alameda Scattered Sites, LLC (all LLC’s are to-be-form; actual 
entity names are subject to change) to combine the full Scattered Sites portfolio into a single 
entity, which will include the following AAHC properties:

Lincoln Willow
Pulte Homes
Stanford House
 
Transfer Transaction

Lincoln Willow, Pulte Homes and Stanford House, will be conveyed to Alameda Scattered 
Sites, LLC, through a Grant Deed, for as- is values substantiated by the appraisals.

AAHC will assign the Seller Promissory Note, secured with a Deed of Trust, as well as the 
Affordable Housing Agreement, and any other documents to the newly created limited liability 
company. The loan terms are: 0% interest rate, a 30-year term, and paid with 75% of residual 
cash flow.

The AAHC budget will be brought in June for review once this issue has been decided by the 
AHA Board.  

FISCAL IMPACT
AHA will pay all expenses related to this real property transfer from the properties’ operating 
funds. 

CEQA
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION
Adopt Authorizing Resolution for the Real Property Transfer of Properties to a Limited 
Liability Company, Amend the Property and Asset Management Agreement, and Authorize 
the Executive Director, or Designee, to Negotiate and Execute Related Documents. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. AAHC Resolution 0522 - LLC

Respectfully submitted,

Cheley Quiambao, Asset Manager



1
1705/14/3050129.1 

ALAMEDA AFFORDABLE HOUSING CORPORATION 

Resolution No. ________
REAL PROPERTY TRANSFER

At a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Directors (the "Board") of Alameda 
Affordable Housing Corporation, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation (the 
"Corporation"), held on May 18, 2022, the following resolutions were adopted: 

WHEREAS, the Corporation, is the owner of that certain real property known as 1) 
Detached Homes, located at 1825 Paru St, 1911 Mulberry St, 2102 Clement Ave, 2116 Clement 
Ave, 2101 Eagle Ave, 2) Lincoln Willow, located at 2103 Lincoln Ave, 3) Pulte Homes, located 
at 441 Mitchell Ave, 445 Mitchell Ave, 2811 Tradewind Ct, 2803 Tradewind Ct, 605 Martin 
Mariner Ave, 611 Martin Mariner Ave, 2825 Tradewind Ct, 2833 Tradewind Ct, 2838 Fifth St, 
2855 Tradewind Dr, 2863 Tradewind Dr, 2873 Tradewind Dr, in the City of Alameda, County of 
Alameda, California (the "Property" or collectively "Properties"); 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Board") authorized the 
Executive Director to execute documents convey Properties to the Corporation effective July 1, 
2021, with the goal of having a separate entity own properties of the Authority with Housing 
Choice Vouchers and Project-Based Vouchers so that the Authority is not both the property 
owner and the contract administrator for the Housing Assistance Payments contracts (the 
HAP Contracts"); 

WHEREAS, the Board deems it in the best interests of the Corporation to have the 
Properties conveyed to a Limited Liability Company, (the “Company”);

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Corporation to assign 
the Properties and all related documents, financing and assets to the Company, which includes
the seller carryback financing from the Authority for the land and improvements at each 
Property, secured by a recorded Deed of Trust at each Property, and to be paid from no more 
than seventy five (75%) percent of the net cash flow of each Property, a recorded twenty (20)-
year Affordable Housing Agreement, to restrict occupancy to low-income households (80% of 
Area Median Income) at affordable rents, and the replace reserve account created for each 
property at One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) per unit; 

WHEREAS, the Board deems it to be in the best interests of the Corporation to execute 
and deliver, and to perform its obligations under, any and all documents or agreements necessary 
or advisable in furtherance of the acquisition by the Corporation of each of the Properties, 
including, without limitation, the grant deed and any other document required to transfer the 
Property to the Corporation, the Authority seller loan documents and deed of trust, the 
Affordable Housing Agreement, the HAP assignment and contract, and any similar or related 
agreements for housing subsidies, assignment of regulatory agreements and loan documents, 
assignments of rents, leases, income and profits, and property management agreements and 
amendments, with the advice counsel, deemed to be consistent with the resolutions contained 
herein (collectively, the "Property Transfer Documents"). 



2
1705/14/3050129.1 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves and 
authorizes the Corporation to enter into the Property Transfer Documents and such other 
agreements, certificates, contracts, documents, and instruments deemed necessary to assist in the 
transfer of the Properties to the Company and to complete all activities contemplated by this 
Resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board hereby authorizes the Executive 
Director, or any designee of the foregoing, acting alone, to negotiate, accept and execute the 
Property Transfer Documents subject to any minor conforming, technical or clarifying changes 
approved by the Executive Director, or any designee, and Authority counsel.  The Executive 
Director, any designee of the foregoing, and the Secretary of the Authority are hereby further 
authorized and directed to take such further actions and execute and record such documents as 
are necessary to negotiate, accept and execute the Property Transfer Documents. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all actions previously taken by the Authority, or 
its employees, officers and agents in connection with the Properties or the transfer to the 
Corporation described herein are hereby ratified and approved. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 



3
1705/14/3050129.1 

ATTEST: 

________________________ ________________________ 
Vanessa M. Cooper Kenji Tamaoki, Vice Chair 
Executive Director/Secretary Board of Commissioners 

Adopted: 

____________________________ 

Date: May 18, 2022



To: Board of Directors

From: 
 

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director 

Prepared By: Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director

 
Date: 
 

May 18, 2022 

Re: Adopt Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Alameda Affordable 
Housing Corporation Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency 
by the Governor of the State of California on March 4, 2021, and Making 
Findings Authorizing Continued Remote Teleconference Meetings of the 
Board of Directors Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions, as amended by 
Assembly Bill No. 361.
6.D.

BACKGROUND
On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 which allowed for 
relaxed provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Brown Act) that allowed legislative bodies to 
conduct meetings through teleconferencing without having to meet the strict compliance of 
the Brown Act. All provisions of Executive Order N-29-20 concerning the conduct of public 
meetings via teleconferencing expired on September 30, 2021. 

DISCUSSION
Assembly Bill 361(Chapter 165,Statutes of 2021) (AB 361)  was signed into law by the 
Governor on September 16, 2021, and went into effect immediately. It amends the Brown Act 
to allow local legislative bodies to continue using teleconferencing and virtual meeting 
technology after the September 30, 2021 expiration of the current Brown Act exemptions as 
long as there is a "proclaimed state of emergency" by the Governor. This allowance also 
depends on state or local officials imposing or recommending measures that promote social 
distancing or a legislative body finding that meeting in person would present an imminent 
safety risk to attendees. Though adopted in the context of the pandemic, AB 361 will allow for 
virtual meetings during other proclaimed emergencies, such as earthquakes or wildfires, 
where physical attendance may present a risk. AB 361 will sunset on January 1, 2024.
 
AB 361 requires the following to continue to conduct teleconferenced meetings:



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 2
May 18, 2022

1. Notice of the meeting must still be given in compliance with the Brown Act, and the 
notice must include the means by which the public may access the meeting and 
provide public comment remotely.

2. The public must be provided access to the meeting via a call-in option or internet-
based service option and allowed to “address the legislative body directly.” The 
Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation does not have to provide an in-person option 
for the public to attend the meeting.

3. The meeting must be conducted “in a manner that protects the statutory and 
constitutional rights of the parties and the public appearing before the legislative body.”

4. If there is a disruption to the meeting broadcast or in the ability to take call-in or 
internet-based public comment, no further action can be taken on agenda items until 
the issue is resolved, even if this means stopping the meeting at that point and 
continuing all remaining items.

5. The Board of Directors cannot require comments to be submitted before the start of 
the meeting. The public must be allowed to make “real time” public comment.

6. Reasonable time for public comment must be provided. If the Board provides a timed 
public comment period, the public comment period must be left open until the time 
expires. 

7. All votes must be taken by roll call. 
8. The Board of Directors must approve a resolution making findings by majority vote 

within 30 days of the first teleconferenced meeting under AB 361  and every 30 days 
thereafter to continue to conduct teleconference meetings under AB 361. The body 
must find it has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and either 
1) the emergency continues to impact the ability to meet safely in person, or 2) State 
or local officials continue to impose or recommend social distancing. 

In light of AB 361, the continuing COVID-19 State of Emergency declared by the Governor, 
the continuing Local Emergency declared by the City of Alameda, the continuing 
recommendations by the County of Alameda Health Officer  of social distancing as a 
mechanism for preventing the spread of COVID-19, and the continued threats to health and 
safety posed by indoor public meetings, staff recommends the Board of Directors adopt the 
proposed Resolution making the findings required to initially invoke AB 361.
 
The procedures currently set up for Board of Directors' meetings, which provide public
attendance and comment through a call-in or internet-based service option, satisfy the
requirements of AB 361. The Executive Director, or designee, will work with he Board to 
ensure that meeting procedures for all teleconferenced meetings  comply with AB 361. 
Continued reliance will require the Board of Directors to adopt a new resolution making 
required findings every 30 days. 

FISCAL IMPACT
None. 

CEQA
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION



AAHC Board of Directors Meeting Page 3
May 18, 2022
Adopt Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Alameda Affordable Housing Corporation 
Ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by the Governor of the State of California 
on March 4, 2021, and Making Findings Authorizing Continued Remote Teleconference 
Meetings of the Board of Directors Pursuant to Brown Act Provisions, as amended by 
Assembly Bill No. 361. 

ATTACHMENTS
1. DRAFT RESOLUTION No. 2022-007 - AB 361 (05.18.22)
2. AB 361.pdf 2021

Respectfully submitted,

Vanessa Cooper, Executive Director



 
 

Resolution No. 2022-007 



 
 



 
 



  





  

  



  

  

  

  

  

  



    

  

  

  
  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  



  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  
  

  
  

  



  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



  

    

  

  

  

    

  

  



    

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  



  

  

  

  

    

  

  



  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  



  

    

  

  

    

  

  



    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  



  

    

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  



    

  

  

  

    

  

  

    



  

  

  

  

    

  

  



  

    

  

  

    

  

  



  

  



  

  

  


